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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

DECEMBER 16, 2013 

DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2013-0890 

1002 MERIDEN LANE 

 

PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1956 house. 

 

ARCHITECTURE 

One-story, rectangular-plan, shallow side-gabled frame house with a brick veneer wainscot; 

single and paired 1:1 and horizontally-configured 2:2 fenestration with a picture window in 

the center of the front elevation with 1:1 side windows; metal-framed open carport at the 

front of the right side of the house. 

RESEARCH 

The house was built in the winter of 1955-1956 by Walter Carrington, a local builder and 

developer, and sold by the spring of 1956 to Robert L. and Dora E. Scarborough, who had 

moved to town from Lufkin, Texas, where Robert Scarborough had been an attorney.  After 

his retirement and move to Austin, he became a poet and lived in this house until his death 

in 1965.  The house was then owned and occupied by Earl M. and Mary E. Scott.  Earl M. 

Scott became the chief of the Legal and Claims Division for the State Department of Mental 

Health and Mental Retardation in 1964, just before he purchased this house, and retired 

here. 

STAFF COMMENTS 

The house does not appear in any City survey. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Release the permit after completion of a City of Austin Documentation Package, consisting 

of photographs of all elevations, a dimensioned sketch plan, and a narrative history, for 

archiving at the Austin History Center.  The house is a good example of large development-

style suburban residential architecture in Austin in the mid-1950s, but lacks the 

architectural and historical significance to warrant individual designation as a historic 

landmark. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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1002 Meriden Lane 
ca. 1956 

 
 

OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
1002 Meriden Lane 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
December, 2013 
 
1992  Earl M. and Mary E. Scott, owners 
  Retired 
 
1985-86 Earl M. Scott, owner 
  No occupation listed 

NOTE:  Mary E. Scott is not listed. 
 
1981  Earl M. and Mary Scott, owners 
  Retired 
 
1977  Earl M. and Mary Scott, owners 

Assistant commissioner, State Department of Mental Health and Mental 
Retardation. 

 
1973  Earl M. and Mary Scott, owners 
  Assistant commissioner, State Department of Mental Health 
 
1968  Earl M. and Mary Scott, owners 

Claims chief, State Department of Mental Health 
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1962  Robert L. and Dora E. Scarborough, owners 
  No occupation listed 

NOTE:  Earl M. Scott (no wife listed) lived at 1610-A Enfield Road; he was a 
claims officer for the State Board of Hospitals and Special Schools. 

 
1959  Robert L. and Dora E. Scarborough, owners 
  No occupation listed 
 
1957  Robert L. and Dora E. Scarborough, owners 
  No occupation listed 
 
1955  The address is not listed in the directory. 
  NOTE:  Robert L. Scarborough is not listed in the directory. 
 
BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES: 
Robert L. and Dora E. Scarborough (ca. 1956 – ca. 1965) 
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Obituary of Robert L. Scarborough 
Austin American-Statesman, January 30, 1965 

 

 
Funeral notice for Robert L. Scarborough 

Austin American-Statesman, January 31, 1965 
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Earl M. and Mary E. Scott (ca. 1965 – ca. 2007) 
Earl M. Scott appears in the 1940 U.S. Census for Coryell County, Texas as a lodger in the 
home of farm laborers West and Margaret Shetton.  Earl M. Scott was then 22, had been born 
in Texas, and was a teacher. 
 
 

 

 

 
 

Obituary of Earl M. Scott 
Austin American-Statesman, December 8, 2007 
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Building permit to Walter Carrington for the construction of the house (1955) 

 
 

 
Water service permit to Robert L. Scarborough for this house (1956) 
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Sewer connection application by Walter Carrington (1955) 

 

 
Building permit to Robert Scarborough to remodel the interior and replace the garage doors 

(1957) and to Earl Scott  
 
 

 

 


